

A bill for an act

relating to

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

159.26 Sec. 17. Minnesota Statutes 2018, section 609.135, subdivision 1c, is amended to read:

159.27 Subd. 1c. **Failure to complete court-ordered treatment.** If the court orders a defendant
159.28 to undergo treatment as a condition of probation and if the defendant fails to successfully
159.29 complete treatment at least 60 days before the term of probation expires, the prosecutor or
159.30 the defendant's probation officer may ask the court to hold a hearing to determine whether
159.31 the conditions of probation should be changed or probation should be revoked. The court
159.32 shall schedule and hold this hearing and take appropriate action, including action under
159.33 subdivision 2, paragraph ~~(h)~~ (i), before the defendant's term of probation expires.

160.1 Sec. 18. Minnesota Statutes 2018, section 609.135, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

160.2 Subd. 2. **Stay of sentence maximum periods.** (a) If the conviction is for a felony other
160.3 than ~~section 609.2113, subdivision 1 or 2, or 609.2114, subdivision 2, or Minnesota Statutes~~
160.4 ~~2012, section 609.21, subdivision 1a, paragraph (b) or (c)~~ an offense listed in paragraph
160.5 (b), the stay shall be for not more than ~~four~~ five years ~~or the maximum period for which the~~
160.6 ~~sentence of imprisonment might have been imposed, whichever is longer.~~

160.7 (b) If the conviction is for a felony violation of section 609.19, 609.195, 609.20, 609.2662,
160.8 609.2663, 609.2664, 609.268, 609.342, 609.343, 609.344, 609.345, or 609.3451, the stay
160.9 shall be for the maximum time period for which the sentence of imprisonment might have
160.10 been imposed by the court.

160.11 ~~(b)~~ (c) If the conviction is for a gross misdemeanor violation of section 169A.20;
160.12 ~~609.2113, subdivision 3, or 609.3451, or for a felony described in section 609.2113,~~
160.13 ~~subdivision 1 or 2, or 609.2114, subdivision 2,~~ the stay shall be for not more than ~~six~~ five
160.14 years. The court shall provide for unsupervised probation for the last year of the stay unless
160.15 the court finds that the defendant needs supervised probation for all or part of the last year.

160.16 ~~(e)~~ (d) If the conviction is for a gross misdemeanor not specified in paragraph ~~(b)~~ (c),
160.17 the stay shall be for not more than two years.

160.18 ~~(d)~~ (e) If the conviction is for any misdemeanor under section 169A.20; 609.746,
160.19 subdivision 1; 609.79; or 617.23; or for a misdemeanor under section 609.2242 or 609.224,
160.20 subdivision 1, in which the victim of the crime was a family or household member as defined
160.21 in section 518B.01, the stay shall be for not more than two years. The court shall provide
160.22 for unsupervised probation for the second year of the stay unless the court finds that the
160.23 defendant needs supervised probation for all or part of the second year.

160.24 ~~(e)~~ (f) If the conviction is for a misdemeanor not specified in paragraph ~~(d)~~ (e), the stay
160.25 shall be for not more than one year.

160.26 ~~(f)~~ (g) The defendant shall be discharged six months after the term of the stay expires,
160.27 unless the stay has been revoked or extended under ~~paragraph (g)~~ paragraphs (h) through
160.28 (l), or the defendant has already been discharged.

160.29 (h) If the defendant has received a stayed sentence for a conviction of a felony offense
160.30 and as a condition of probation was ordered by the court to pay restitution, the probation
160.31 officer, or the court if the defendant is on unsupervised probation, shall notify the prosecuting
160.32 authority six months prior to the expiration or early discharge of a stayed sentence, the
160.33 amount of any unpaid court-ordered restitution. Notwithstanding the maximum periods
161.1 specified for stays of sentences under paragraph (a) or (b), a court may extend a defendant's
161.2 term of probation for up to three years if it finds, at a hearing conducted under subdivision
161.3 1a, that:

161.4 (1) the defendant has not paid court-ordered restitution in accordance with the payment
161.5 schedule or structure; and

161.6 (2) the defendant is likely to not pay the restitution the defendant owes before the term
161.7 of probation expires.

161.8 The extension of probation for failure to pay restitution may be extended by the court for
161.9 up to two additional years if the court finds, at another hearing conducted under subdivision
161.10 1a, that the defendant still has not paid the court-ordered restitution that the defendant owes.

161.11 Nothing in this subdivision limits the court's ability to refer the case to collections under
161.12 section 609.104.

161.13 (i) If the defendant has received a stayed sentence for a conviction of a felony offense
161.14 and as a condition of probation was ordered to successfully complete treatment, the probation
161.15 officer, or the court if the defendant is on unsupervised probation, shall notify the prosecuting
161.16 authority six months prior to the expiration or early discharge of a stayed sentence as to
161.17 whether the defendant has successfully completed court-ordered treatment. Notwithstanding
161.18 the maximum periods specified for stays of sentences under paragraph (a) or (b), a court
161.19 may extend a defendant's term of probation for up to three years if it finds, at a hearing
161.20 conducted under subdivision 1c, that:

161.21 (1) the defendant has failed to complete court-ordered treatment successfully; and

161.22 (2) the defendant is likely not to complete court-ordered treatment before the term of
161.23 probation expires.

161.24 The extension of probation for failure to successfully complete court-ordered treatment may
161.25 be extended by the court for up to an additional two years if the court finds, at another
161.26 hearing conducted under subdivision 1c, that the defendant still has not successfully
161.27 completed the court-ordered treatment.

161.28 ~~(g)~~ (j) Notwithstanding the maximum periods specified for stays of sentences under
161.29 paragraphs ~~(a)~~ (c) to (f), a court may extend a defendant's term of probation for up to one
161.30 year if it finds, at a hearing conducted under subdivision 1a, that:

161.31 (1) the defendant has not paid court-ordered restitution in accordance with the payment
161.32 schedule or structure; and

162.1 (2) the defendant is likely to not pay the restitution the defendant owes before the term
162.2 of probation expires.

162.3 This one-year extension of probation for failure to pay restitution may be extended by the
162.4 court for up to one additional year if the court finds, at another hearing conducted under
162.5 subdivision 1a, that the defendant still has not paid the court-ordered restitution that the
162.6 defendant owes.

162.7 Nothing in this subdivision limits the court's ability to refer the case to collections under
162.8 section 609.104.

162.9 ~~(h)~~ (k) Notwithstanding the maximum periods specified for stays of sentences under
162.10 paragraphs ~~(a)~~ (c) to (f), a court may extend a defendant's term of probation for up to three
162.11 years if it finds, at a hearing conducted under subdivision 1c, that:

162.12 (1) the defendant has failed to complete court-ordered treatment successfully; and
162.13 (2) the defendant is likely not to complete court-ordered treatment before the term of
162.14 probation expires.

162.15 (l) If the defendant has received a stayed sentence for a conviction of a violent crime as
162.16 defined under section 609.1095, subdivision 1, paragraph (d), except violations of any
162.17 provisions of chapter 152, the probation officer, or the court if the defendant is on
162.18 unsupervised probation, shall notify the prosecuting authority six months prior to the
162.19 expiration or early discharge of a stayed sentence that the stayed sentence will expire or
162.20 that the defendant will be discharged early from a stayed sentence. Notwithstanding the
162.21 maximum periods specified for stays of sentences under paragraph (a) or (b), upon motion
162.22 by the prosecuting authority and hearing, a court may extend a defendant's term of probation
162.23 up to three years if it finds by a preponderance of the evidence that the defendant remains
162.24 a threat to public safety. In making this determination, the court shall consider the following:

162.25 (1) the seriousness and frequency of any previous violations of the conditions of
162.26 probation;

162.27 (2) any pending probation violations or criminal offenses for which a violation report
162.28 or criminal charge has been filed with a court;

162.29 (3) whether the defendant has been convicted of additional criminal offenses while on
162.30 probation; and

162.31 (4) whether the court issued a domestic abuse no contact order pursuant to section 629.75,
162.32 subdivision 1, and whether such an order remains in effect.

163.1 Upon motion of the prosecuting authority and hearing, the extension of probation on the
163.2 basis that the defendant remains a threat to public safety may be extended by the court for
163.3 up to two additional years if the court, using the same factors as above, finds by a
163.4 preponderance of the evidence that the defendant remains a threat to public safety. Any
163.5 extensions of probation ordered by the court under this subdivision may not exceed the
163.6 maximum period for which the sentence of imprisonment might have been imposed.

163.7 (m) Notwithstanding the time periods for stays of sentences under paragraphs (a) to (f),
163.8 a court may discharge a defendant from probation before the expiration of the maximum
163.9 period prescribed for the probation. If the defendant is discharged from probation before
163.10 the expiration of the maximum period prescribed for probation, the defendant shall not be
163.11 subject to a custody status point if charged and convicted of a subsequent crime during the
163.12 original pronounced probationary sentence.

163.13 **EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective August 1, 2019, and applies to stays of
163.14 sentence granted on or after that date.

163.15 Sec. 19. Minnesota Statutes 2018, section 609.135, is amended by adding a subdivision
163.16 to read:

163.17 Subd. 2a. **Stay of sentence maximum periods; sentence stayed before August 1,**
163.18 **2019.** (a) Notwithstanding the sentence announced by the court, an eligible offender shall
163.19 be discharged from probation on August 1, 2024, unless the court extends the defendant's
163.20 term of probation consistent with subdivision 2, paragraph (h), (i), or (l).

163.21 (b) As used in this section, "eligible offender" means a person who:

163.22 (1) was sentenced prior to August 1, 2019, for a felony offense other than an offense
163.23 listed in subdivision 2, paragraph (b);

163.24 (2) received a stay of imposition or execution of sentence pursuant to subdivision 1;

163.25 (3) has not been discharged from probation; and

163.26 (4) is serving a sentence that has not otherwise expired or been executed.

163.27 **EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective August 1, 2019.

167.21 Sec. 27. Minnesota Statutes 2018, section 611A.039, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

167.22 Subdivision 1. **Notice required.** (a) Except as otherwise provided in subdivision 2,
167.23 within 15 working days after a conviction, acquittal, or dismissal in a criminal case in which
167.24 there is an identifiable crime victim, the prosecutor shall make reasonable good faith efforts
167.25 to provide to each affected crime victim oral or written notice of the final disposition of the
167.26 case.

167.27 (b) The probation agent or office responsible for supervising an offender, or the agent's
167.28 or office's designee, shall make a reasonable and good faith effort to notify each affected
167.29 crime victim within a reasonable time after the court orders an offender discharged early
167.30 from probation.

168.1 (c) When the court is considering modifying the sentence for a felony or a crime of
168.2 violence or an attempted crime of violence, the court or its designee shall make a reasonable
168.3 and good faith effort to notify the victim of the crime. If the victim is incapacitated or
168.4 deceased, notice must be given to the victim's family. If the victim is a minor, notice must
168.5 be given to the victim's parent or guardian. The notice must include:

168.6 (1) the date and approximate time of the review;

- 168.7 (2) the location where the review will occur;
- 168.8 (3) the name and telephone number of a person to contact for additional information;
- 168.9 and
- 168.10 (4) a statement that the victim and victim's family may provide input to the court
- 168.11 concerning the sentence modification.

168.12 (d) As used in this section, "crime of violence" has the meaning given in section 624.712,

168.13 subdivision 5, and also includes gross misdemeanor violations of section 609.224, and

168.14 nonfelony violations of sections 518B.01, 609.2231, 609.3451, 609.748, and 609.749.

171.19 Sec. 31. **GRANTS TO FACILITATE EXIT FROM SUPERVISED RELEASE.**

171.20 (a) The commissioner of corrections shall provide grants to facilitate access to community

171.21 options for supervised offenders. The commissioner shall establish criteria for selecting

171.22 grant recipients and the amount awarded to each grant recipient, with a preference for how

171.23 recipients will enhance existing supervision and services.

171.24 (b) By January 15, 2021, the commissioner of corrections shall submit a report to the

171.25 chairs and ranking minority members of the senate and house of representatives committees

171.26 and divisions having jurisdiction over public safety policy and finance. At a minimum, the

171.27 report must include:

171.28 (1) the total number of grants issued under this program;

171.29 (2) the average amount of each grant;

171.30 (3) the community services accessed as a result of the grants;

172.1 (4) a summary of the type of supervision offenders were under when a grant was used

172.2 to help access a community option;

172.3 (5) the number of individuals who completed, and the number who failed to complete,

172.4 programs accessed as a result of this grant; and

172.5 (6) the number of individuals who violated the terms of release following participation

172.6 in a program accessed as a result of this grant, separating technical violations and new

172.7 criminal offenses.

172.8 **EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective July 1, 2019.